ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 9, 2006
8:36 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senat or Gretchen Guess

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmation: WIlliam A Ganger, Board of Governors of the
Al aska Bar
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 318(FIN am
"An Act limting the exercise of em nent domain."
HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 318

SHORT TI TLE: LI M TATI ON ON EM NENT DOVAI N
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MCGUI RE, HOLM HAVWKER

01/ 09/ 06 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 05

01/ 09/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 09/ 06 (H JUD, FIN

01/ 11/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 11/ 06 (H Heard & Held

01/ 11/ 06 (H M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 25/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 25/ 06 (H Heard & Held

01/ 25/ 06 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 01/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 01/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 03/ 06 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 03/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 318(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 03/ 06 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 06/ 06 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 3DP 1NR 2AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2006



02/ 06/ 06 (H) DP: WLSON, ANDERSON, MCGU RE;
02/ 06/ 06 (H) NR. GRUENBERG,

02/ 06/ 06 (H) AM GARA, KOTT

02/ 09/ 06 (H) FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
02/ 09/ 06 (H) Moved CSHB 318(FIN) Qut of Committee
02/ 09/ 06 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 10/ 06 (H) FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 2DP 3NR 3AM
02/ 10/ 06 (H) DP: HAWKER, MEYER:

02/ 10/ 06 (H) NR. KERTTULA, JOULE, WEYHRAUCH;
02/ 10/ 06 (H) AM STOLTZE, HOLM FOSTER

02/ 21/ 06 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 21/ 06 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHB 318(FIN) AM

02/ 22/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 06 (S) JuD, FIN

03/ 02/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 02/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 09/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

WIlliam A G anger, Senior Vice President
Wl |'s Fargo Bank

301 West Northern Lights Blvd

Anchor age, AK 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Confirmation Candi date

Crai g Johnson, Legislative Aide

Staff to Representative Lesil MQiire

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 318

Peter Putzier, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Depart nent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 318

Wn Menefee, Chief of COperations

Depart ment of Natural Resources

400 W I | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 318

Rut h Bl ackwel |
Al aska Associ ation of Realtors

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2006



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 318

Ed Earnhart
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 318

Kevin Ri chey
Al aska Muni ci pal League
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 318

Hope Sher nel
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 318

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:36:05 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Getchen Guess, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

Confirmation: WIlliam AL Ganger - Board of Governors of the
Al aska Bar

8:36: 58 AM
CHAI R RALPH SEEKINS asked M. G anger to describe the reason he
i's seeking reappointnent to the Board of Governors.

WLLIAM A GRANGER, Senior Vice President, WlIls Fargo Bank,
responded that he has found the work to be inportant to the
Al aska Bar and to the Alaska comunity. The Board of Governors
fills an inportant role in maintaining quality in the judicia
syst em

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH asked M. G anger whether the Board of
Governors sets the dues for the Al aska Bar.

MR. GRANGER i ndi cated that they do.

SENATOR FRENCH asked where the Al aska Bar dues rank nationally.
MR. GRANGER said they are at the high end.

SENATOR FRENCH asked whether the idea of a two-tiered systemto

allow for lawers who work in the public service arena to pay a
| oner fee has been expl ored.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2006



MR. CGRANGER said bar dues are one of the nore hotly discussed
topics before the Board of Governors and the Bar has negoti ated
| oner dues for people who offer |arge anmounts of pro bono work.

SENATOR FRENCH voiced a preference for incorporation of a two-
tiered system

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked M. Granger to speak about how the
Board handl es di sciplinary action.

MR. GRANCGER responded the ~current nunber of cases being
investigated is currently less than it has historically been.
The Board of Governors has been very active in managing the
cases. The nature of the case generally determnes how long it
takes to resolve. Due to the anmount of procedure involved it can
sonetinmes take years to resol ve.

8:46: 13 AM
SENATOR CHARLI E HUGE NS asked M. Ganger the length of tine he
has served on the Board.

MR. GRANGER responded he has served for six years.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked himto speak about the inprovenents he has
seen in his tine with the Board.

MR. GRANCER responded that the Board goes through many changes
depending on the people who serve and their personal interests.
He described the Board as a “very wel|l managed machine.”

SENATOR HUGE NS asked him the kind of value that he adds to the
Boar d.

MR. GRANCER described his involvenrent as “common, street-
commercial sense to what is going on.” He said he tries to keep
everyone on point and to keep the ball noving in a practical
manner .

SENATOR HUGE NS asked him to nane three tasks that are critica
to performas a Board.

VR. GRANCGER replied discipline, oversight of Association
managenent, and |iai son between the public and the Al aska Bar.

8:50: 08 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2006



CHAI R SEEKINS asked the nunber of nenbers in the Al aska Bar
Associ ati on.

MR. GRANGER indicated there were a couple thousand but not all
were active.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked the anobunt of gross revenue that the
Associ ation pulls in.

MR. CRANGER speculated it was over $1 mllion dollars in dues
and continui ng education fees.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked what the Associ ati on does with the dues.

MR. GRANGER explained dues noney is spent on admnistration
di scipline investigation, continuing education and adm nistering
the adm ttance.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked how often the Board of Governors neets.

MR. GRANCER responded every other nonth. Meetings are two days
I ong and are generally held in Anchorage.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked whether there was pay for being on the
Boar d.

MR. GRANGER sai d no.

8:53: 01 AM

SENATOR FRENCH noted that continuing education classes are
offered for a fee. He asked whether they were also subsidized
t hrough t he dues.

MR. GRANGER advi sed the commttee that some are under funded and
sone are over funded. It depends on many factors, such as
at t endance.

8:55:32 AM

SENATOR FRENCH noved to forward M. Ganger’s nane to the
President of the Senate for consideration. This does not reflect
intent by any of the nenbers to vote for or against the
i ndi vidual during any further session. Hearing no objections,
the notion carried.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a brief recess at 8:55:54 AM

HB 318-LI M TATI ON ON EM NENT DOVAI N

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2006



8:59:34 AM

VICE CHAIR CHARLIE HUGE NS informed the conmttee that Chair
Seekins was in another neeting and then announced HB 318 to be
up for consideration.

PETER PUTZI ER, Senior Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Departnent of
Law (DOL), offered to answer questions.

ED EARNHART identified hinmself as an activist 1in |loca

government and politics. He testified against HB 318 and said it
usurps the authority of |ocal governments by preventing them
from using emnent domain related to economc and quality of
life devel opnent s. He not ed em nent domai n has been
i nappropriately and illegally applied but the abuses of power
have been exaggerated and yet have positively served countless
communities. The people in New London, Connecticut whose houses
were taken were not poor, he clainmed. Scare tactics are being
used to push this type of legislation all over the nation.

9:03: 22 AM

MR. EARNHART continued the State of Connecticut allowed the
exercise of emnent domain to inprove its econony wth planned
devel opnent. He summarized by saying HB 318 is m sguided and
clainmed that the |egislation was unnecessary.

9: 06: 18 AM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked for clarification whether he did not want
limts on em nent domain.

MR. EARNHART clarified his opposition was to the Iimts that the
bill sets up

SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH asked M. Earnhart whether his objection
was nore toward prohibiting the taking of property for
recreational use or toward private-to-private transfer.

MR. EARNHART said both, and that he would prefer the bill use

the words “quality of I|ife” instead of “recreation.” Mich of
what is in the bill constitutes nore than sheer recreation, he
sai d.

9:08: 45 AM

HOPE SHERMELL, Fairbanks, testified in opposition to HB 318. She
said each city and municipality should have their own rules and
regul ations regarding emnent domain and that the state should
never enter into affairs of em nent donain.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2006



CHAIR HUGGA NS asked Ms. Shernell whether there was a specific
provision in the bill that she objected to.

M5. SHERMELL asserted it should be the city, nunicipalities,
and/ or boroughs to handle such matters. It is a power that
should be limted to | ocal governnment.

9:10: 55 AM
RUTH BLACKWELL, representing the Al aska Association of Realtors,
said the realtors were about 95 percent happy with the bill. HB

318 would correct the Kelo versus New London case and would
ensure that people are nore secure in their personal residences.
The Association would prefer to see a “no net |oss” provision in
the bill. One percent of the landmass in Alaska is in private
ownership and taxed and they would like to see the recreationa
| and provision taken out.

9:12: 53 AM

SENATOR (QGUESS asked Ms. Blackwell whether she thought that
anytinme the state or nunicipality takes property off tax rolls
there should be a “no net |oss” provision.

M5. BLACKWELL said that would be great but it is not reality.
The Association’s main focus is on personal residences, hone
ownership, and Dbusinesses. That is the foundation of the
i ndustry and peopl e should be secure in their hones.

9:15:30 AM

KEVIN RICHEY, Alaska Mnicipal League, advised the comittee
that the League does not have a stance on em nent domain. They
pronote the betternent of communities. Three of the |argest
communities in Al aska have al ready adopted ordinances simlar to
HB 318. He said there is no need under the Al aska State
Constitution to include municipalities in the bill because the
bill states that the “Legislature intends by this Act not to
provi de an absolute bar on transfer of lands to private entities
but to place restrictions on such transfers when they occur.” He

said adding municipalities would not be fulfilling the intent of
the bill. He offered to work wth the sponsor to strengthen the
bill.

SENATOR GUESS asked M. Richey whether he was saying the bil
does not need Sections 4 and 5.

MR. RI CHEY sai d yes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2006



CHAIR HUGGA NS asked M. Richey whether he had anything further
to add.

MR. RICHEY advised the commttee that the Alaska Minici pal
League neets once a year. Revenue sharing and PERS are two top
i ssues but | ocal control IS very i nport ant to al
muni ci palities.

9:23:22 AM
CRAIG JOHNSON, Staff to Representative Lesil MQ@iire, said he
does not disagree with any of the previous testinony but that

the bill is an ongoing process and will nost l|likely see sone
nodi fications. As l|long as the basic premse of protecting
peopl e’ s hones renains, Representative McGQuire will not have any

problemw th strengthening the bill.

SENATOR (GUESS asked whether it was Representative MQiire’'s
contention that the Legislature should decide whether em nent
domain is a state or a nunicipality issue.

MR. JOHNSON said both. Certain issues should be made locally in
a zoning manner yet the private-to-private transfer and the
protecting of people’s hones should be a policy of the state.

SENATOR GUESS noted the state coul d deci de whether or not it was
a |l ocal issue.

MR. JOHNSON agr eed.

SENATOR GUESS asked M. Johnson to explain how the 250 I|inear
feet was determ ned.

MR. JOHNSON explained the original draft of the bill had 1,000
feet. After nmuch research they realized that area was bigger
than nost city lots and so they tailored the area down so that
it would not block projects yet would be able to protect a rural
lifestyle.

9:28:49 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked him to respond to the Alaska Minicipal
League’s concern that Sections 4 and 5 do not belong in the
bill.

MR. JOHNSON responded it is from the policy that em nent domain
is the responsibility of the state.

9: 30: 53 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2006



SENATOR FRENCH posed a hypothetical exanple of two property
owners, one that has an area of |land taken for em nent domain
purposes to create a trail and the other who has no property
taken. He asked M. Johnson whether the latter property owner
woul d have any claimfor conpl aint.

MR. JOHNSON i ndi cated he woul d not.

SENATOR FRENCH asked whether the bill takes into account the |ay
of the land around the property. For exanple, he asked, if the
|atter property owner’s view would be danpened by the trail,
woul d he have any claimto conplain.

9:33: 59 AM

MR. JOHNSON said he believes everything has been considered but
on a practical matter they don't want to “sacrifice the good for
the perfect.”

SENATOR FRENCH referred to page 5, lines 7-10 and said he would
be irritated if the state were to take part of his backyard to

develop a bike trail. He said snmall boat harbors and sports
facilities don't seemto fit in with the list of others in that
section and expressed concern that the bill would prevent a

hockey rink or sonmething of the like to be built in an urban
ar ea.

9:37:10 AM

MR, JOHNSON agreed that was a future concern and the reason for
paragraph (7). However, a project such as that should take an
extraordinary effort and have to go through the extenuating
process.

SENATOR FRENCH asked whether sonething like that would require a
pi ece of | egislation.

MR. JOHNSON said yes and that was the intent.

SENATOR GUESS asked M. Johnson whet her the process of expanding
a small boat harbor would had been clearly discussed on the
record.

MR, JOHNSON noted there were not nmany small boat harbors
adj acent to homes and that people who build a hone next to a
smal | boat harbor should be aware of the possible devel opnent
expansi on.

9:39: 52 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 9, 2006



PETER PUTZI ER, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of
Law (DOL), testified that the primary purpose of building or
expanding the small boat harbor would have to be recreation
before it would be barred. Secondly, it would have to be for
public use. He agreed with M. Johnson’s observation that there
were not a lot of honmes adjacent to any small boat harbors in
Al aska.

SENATOR GUESS asked M. Putzier the statutory definition of
“recreational.”

MR. PUTZIER said there isn’t one.

SENATOR QUESS suggested Auke Bay Harbor [Statter Harbor] in
Juneau where people live on their boats and store their pleasure
boats could be classified as a small, recreational boat harbor.

MR. JOHNSON countered that Statter Harbor is a commerci al
har bor .

9:43: 19 AM

SENATOR GUESS noted that line 8 references a playground. She
asked whether a playground associated with a school would be
excl uded.

MR. JOHNSON said there would be nothing precluding the taking of
a private hone to a build a playground for a school.

SENATOR QUESS referred to lines 14 and 15 and asked for the
statutory definition of “school program?”

MR. JOHNSON responded that was part of a federal law requiring
safe trails to and from school .

MR. PUTZIER agreed that there is a federal programin place and
t hat | anguage was intended to track that program

SENATOR FRENCH asked for an explanation of the statutes listed
on Page 5, |lines 26-28.

MR. PUTZIER explained they are in association wth road
projects, |andscaping, scenic enhancenent adjacent to highways,
abandoned mne reclanmation, public works, and historic,
prehi storic and archeol ogi cal sites.

SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Putzier for an explanation of |ines 29
and 30.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 9, 2006



MR. PUTZIER advised that they refer to the parks function and
are intended to create consistency wwth Title 41.

9:47:16 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked for «clarification whether he was saying
that anything Title 41 |eaves open that the bill also |eaves
open.

MR. PUTZIER said that is correct. There is an open question as
to what authority does exist under those circunstances but to
hi s knowl edge the state has never exercised em nent domain.

SENATOR FRENCH announced that he would confirm wth the
Legi sl ative Legal departnent.

[ Senat or Seekins rejoined the neeting and resuned as commttee
chair.]

SENATOR HUGE NS asked M. Johnson to advise the commttee about
previ ous discussions concerning em nent domain  regarding
establishing traditional trails.

MR. JOHNSON said existing trails would not be subject to em nent
domain so there has not been any discussion to date. They have
protected access to and from state-owned right of ways to
hunti ng and fi shing.

9:52: 04 AM
SENATOR GUESS asked M. Johnson whether Section 1 was necessary.

MR. JOHNSON said the House Finance Conmittee left the findings
in to establish clear guidelines because the issue wll
definitely end up in court. The sponsors do not want the courts
to have to specul ate about the intent.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked for an exanple of “the taking of a
| andowner’s personal residence to develop an indoor or outdoor
recreational facility or project.”

MR. JOHNSON pointed to the Anchorage Coastal Trail. He said the
original coastal trail took sonme property and sone people were
not happy about it.

9: 55: 56 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said he was unaware of anyone’s honme being taken
for the Anchorage Coastal Trail

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2006



MR. JOHNSON conceded that was not a good exanpl e.

9:59: 52 AM
MR.  JOHNSON added that the 250 feet Iine was open for
di scussi on.

CHAIR SEEKINS posed a hypothetical situation of a |ake
surrounded by houses. He said nobody would be able to build a
bi ke path around the | ake unless all of the houses were at | east
250 feet back fromthe surface of the |ake.

MR. JOHNSON agr eed.

CHAI R SEEKI NS not ed access to navigable streans would be all owed
even if it were purely for recreational purposes. He asserted
that it was a right of the people of the State of Al aska to have
access to every navigable water and fishing stream and yet the
bill does not necessarily allow for a boat ranp.

10: 03: 21 AM

MR. JOHNSON said he conceded that past adm nistrations have nade
m stakes in selling state |and along navigable waterways to
private owners. He suggested in the future Al aska nust | ook hard
at any land transferred to private individuals.

CHAI R SEEKI NS expl ai ned, as he understands current Al aska State
| aw, when the state disposes of state |land they mnust provide
easenment for access but he questioned the distance in feet.

MR. JOHNSON did not know and deferred to M. Putzier.
MR. PUTZI ER deferred to the Departnent of Natural Resources.

WYN  MENEFEE, Chief of Operations, Department of Natural
Resources (DNR), said when the state does sell or dispose of
| and adjacent to a body of water they | ook at navigable access
and put a 50-foot access easenent al ong the water body.

10: 07: 23 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether a person could assune there would be
at | east one access nethod to a | ake.

MR. MENEFEE said yes. He advised that there were past instances
where the state disposed of land wthout the 50-foot easenent
est abl i shed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS noted if there were a lake or stream that did not
have a reserved easenent, the riparian |andowner m ght not have
an existing easenent.

MR. MENEFEE said correct.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether the 50-foot easenent specified in
current statute was sufficient for providing access to a
navi gabl e wat er way.

MR. MENEFEE said yes although it would not allow for a two-I|ane
r oad.

10: 11: 02 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS expressed concern over the definition of
“recreation.” He asserted it was a fundanental right of the

peopl e to have reasonabl e access to their property.

MR. JOHNSON reiterated the goal of the sponsor was not to affect
private-to-private transfer and was to pronote protection of a
person’ s hone.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whet her trust property had been di scussed.

MR. JOHNSON said the short answer is that it is not protected
Control is one of the things given up in a trust situation.

CHAIR SEEKINS held the bill in conmttee. There being no further
business to cone before the conmttee, he adjourned the neeting
at 10: 15: 54 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 9, 2006



